
           
 

AGENDA
ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING
September 5, 2017–8:30 a.m.

Escambia County Central Office Complex
3363 West Park Place, Room 104

             
1. Call to Order.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.   
 

4. Approval of Minutes.  
 

A.   RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the August 1, 2017 Planning Board Meeting.

 

5. Acceptance of Rezoning Planning Board Meeting Packet.  
 

6. Quasi-judicial Process Explanation.  
 

7. Public Hearings.  
 

A.   Case #: Z-2017-04
Applicant: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for Wayne Cotton, Copter

Complex, LLC., Owners
Address: 9700 BLK N Pensacola Boulevard
Property
Size:

3.47 (+/-) acres

From: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (25
du/acre)

To: Com, Commercial district (25 du/acre)
 

B.   Case #: Z-2017-16
Applicant: David Fitzpatrick, Agent for Stafford Development Group,

Owner



Address: 5940 Saufley Pines Road
Property
Size:

1.43 (+/-) acres

From: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (25
du/acre)

To: MDR, Medium Density Residential district (10 du/acre)
 

C.   Case #: Z-2017-14
Applicant: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for Crimson Nine Mile Road

Holdings, LLC, Owner
Address: SW Corner of Nine Mile Road and I-10
Property
Size:

174 (+/-) acres

From: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (25
du/acre)

To: Com, Commercial district (25 du/acre)
 

D.   Case #: Z-2017-15
Applicant: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for The Dawson Company,

Owner
Address: 3811 W Nine Mile Road
Property
Size:

52 (+/-) acres

From: HDMU, High Density Mixed-use district (25 du/acre)
To: Com, Commercial district (25 du/acre)

 

8. Adjournment.  
 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   4. A.           
Meeting Date: 09/05/2017  

Agenda Item:
RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the Meeting
Resume' Minutes of the August 1, 2017 Planning Board Meeting.

Attachments
Draft August 1, 2017 Planning Board Rezoning Meeting Minutes



D R A F T
RESUMÉ OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD QUASI-JUDICIAL

REZONING
 August 1, 2017

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(8:36 A.M. – 10:29 A.M.)
(10:39 A.M. - 1:30 P.M.)
(1:35 P.M. - 2:50 P.M.)

Present: Reid Rushing   
  Jay Ingwell   
  Wayne Briske, Chairman   
  Timothy Pyle   
  Eric Fears   
  William Clay   
  Stephen Opalenik   
Absent: Edwin Howard
  Patty Hightower
Staff Present: Andrew Holmer, Division Manager, Planning & Zoning

Caleb MacCartee, Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning
Griffin Vickery, Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning
Horace Jones, Director, Development Services
John Fisher, Senior Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning
Juan Lemos, Senior Planner, Planning & Zoning
Kayla Meador, Sr Office Assistant
Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney

 

 

               

1.  Call to Order.
 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was led by Wayne Briske.
 

3.  Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement. 
 
  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to approve the proof of publication and to waive the
reading of the legal advertisement. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
 

4.  Approval of Minutes.
 

A.     A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the July 10, 2017 Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for July 2017.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for August 2017.

  

 



  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to approve the minutes from the July 10, 2017
Rezoning Planning Board Meeting. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to approve the minutes from the July 10, 2017 Regular
Planning Board Meeting. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
 

5.  Acceptance of Rezoning Planning Board Meeting Packet.
 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to accept the Rezoning Planning Board meeting packet
for August 1, 2017. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
 

6.  Quasi-judicial Process Explanation.
 

7.  Public Hearings.
 

A.     Case #: Z-2017-06
Applicant: Floyd Peacock, Agent for

New Birth Baptist Church,
Owner

Address: 1703 N Q Street
Property
Size:

0.46 (+/-) acres

From: MDR, Medium Density
Residential district (10
du/acre)

To: HDR, High Density
Residential district (18
du/acre)

No planning board member acknowledged visiting the site.

No planning board member acknowledged any ex parte communication
regarding this item.

No planning board member abstained from voting on this matter due to any
conflict of interest.

  

 
  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to accept Staff's Findings of Fact and recommend
denial of the rezoning case. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
 

  



B.     Case #: Z-2017-11
Applicant: Tom Hammond, Agent

for William R. Smith,
Owner

Address: 7237 Mobile Highway
Property
Size:

4.3 (+/-) acres

From: LDR, Low Density
Residential district (four
du/acre)

To: HDMU, High Density
Mixed-use district (25
du/acre)

No planning board member acknowledged visiting the site.

No planning board member acknowledged any ex parte communication
regarding this item.

Tim Pyle abstained from voting on this matter due to any conflict of interest.

  

 
  Motion by Jay Ingwell, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Applicant requested to change the rezoning request to LDMU instead of
HDMU.

Motion was made to recommend denial based on Staff Find's of Fact. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSTAIN) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 

 

C.     Case #: Z-2017-12
Applicant: Micheal W. Milner, Agent

for Richard Mertins, Owner
Address: 2410 Langley Avenue
Property
Size:

0.82 (+/-) acres

From: Com, Commercial district
(25 du/acre)

To: HC/LI-NA, Heavy
Commercial and Light
Industrial district,
prohibiting the subsequent
establishment of any
microbreweries,
microdistillerires,
microwineries, bars,
nightclubs, or adult
entertainment uses (25
du/acre)

No planning board member acknowledged visiting the site.

No planning board member acknowledged any ex parte communication
regarding this item.

No planning board member abstained from voting on this matter due to any
conflict of interest.

  

 



  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to recommend approval to the BCC. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
 

D.     Case #: Z-2017-13
Applicant: Hattie M. McGary, Owner
Address: 105 Louis Street
Property
Size:

0.17 (+/-) acres

From: LDR, Low Density
Residential district (four
du/acre)

To: LDMU, Low Density
Mixed-use district (seven
du/acre)

No planning board member acknowledged visiting the site.

No planning board member acknowledged any ex parte communication
regarding this item.

No planning board member abstained from voting on this matter due to any
conflict of interest.

  

 
  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by William Clay 

Motion was made to recommend approval of the rezoning case, based on
the case being compatible with Criteria 1-3 and 5, and accepting Staff's
Findings of Fact for Criteria 4 and 6. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 
 

8.  Discussion Items.
 

A.     Zoning/FLU Inconsistencies Discussion.

Board Members, Staff, and citizens discussed this item. Board asked for a
very clear description on the different options being presented to them.

  

 

B.     Clustering Discussion.

Board Member, Staff, and citizens discussed this issue. The item will be
brought back next month for action.

  

 

C.     Spot Zoning/Rezoning Discussion.

Board Members, Staff, and citizens discussed this item. The item will be
brought back next month for more discussion.

  

 

D.     Subdivision Roads and Site Plans Discussion.

Board Members, Staff, and citizens discussed this item. The item will be
brought back next month for more discussion.

  

 

E.     Storage Containers Discussion.   



E.     Storage Containers Discussion.

Board Members and Staff discussed this item. They will have more
discussion on this item next month.

  

 

9.  Adjournment.
 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. A.           
Meeting Date: 09/05/2017  
CASE : Z-2017-04
APPLICANT: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for Wayne Cotton, Copter

Complex, LLC., Owners 

ADDRESS: 9700 N Pensacola Boulevard 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 08-1S-30-3201-049-005
FUTURE LAND USE: C, Commercial (MU-U,

Mixed-Use Urban Pending
Small Scale Review)

 

DISTRICT: 5  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 10/05/2017 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (25 du/acre)

TO: Com, Commercial district (25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
Whether the proposed rezoning is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of
the Comprehensive Plan and not in conflict with any of the plan provisions

Comprehensive Plan (CPP)1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development and
redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the
Escambia County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).



CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories.  The Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) Future
Land Use (FLU) category is intended for an intense mix of residential and nonresidential
uses while promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and
suburban land uses within the category as a whole. Range of allowable uses include:
Residential, Retail and Services, Professional Office, Light Industrial, Recreational
Facilities, Public and Civic. The maximum residential density is 25 dwelling units per
acre.

CPP FLU 1.5.1 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote
the efficient use of existing public roads, utilities, and service infrastructure, the County
will encourage the redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development
densities and intensities located in the MU-S, MU-U, Commercial, and Industrial Future
Land Use categories (with the exception of residential development).

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment to Com is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future
Land Use (FLU) category MU-U as proposed in the Small Scale SSA-2017-04 and as
stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1.  The FLU allows for a mix of both residential and
non-residential uses such a retail and services, professional office and light industrial. As
stated in CPP FLU 1.5.1, if development occurs, the property will utilize the existing
roadway, utilities, and infrastructure and will encourage redevelopment of
the underutilized property to maximize development densities and intensities located in
the MU-U FLU use categories.

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is
consistent with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

Sec. 3-2.11 Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (HC/LI).
(a) Purpose. The Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial (HC/LI) district establishes
appropriate areas and land use regulations for a complementary mix of industrial uses
with a broad range of commercial activities. The primary intent of the district is to allow
light manufacturing, large-scale wholesale and retail uses, major services, and other
more intense uses than allowed in the Commercial district. The variety and intensity of
non-residential uses within the HC/LI district is limited by their compatibility with
surrounding uses. All commercial and industrial operations are limited to the confines of
buildings and not allowed to produce undesirable effects on other property. To retain
adequate area for commercial and industrial activities, other uses within the district are
limited.

Sec. 3-2.10 Commercial district (Com).
(a) Purpose. The Commercial (Com) district establishes appropriate areas and land use
regulations for general commercial activities, especially the retailing of commodities and
services. The primary intent of the district is to allow more diverse and intense
commercial uses than the neighborhood commercial allowed within the mixed-use
districts. To maintain compatibility with surrounding uses, all commercial operations



within the Commercial district are limited to the confines of buildings and not allowed to
produce undesirable effects on surrounding property. To retain adequate area for
commercial activities, new and expanded residential development within the district is
limited, consistent with the Commercial (C) future land use category.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is not consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code. Although, the proposed rezoning meets the site design standards
within the location criteria, and there are many commercial and residential uses that
adjoin this property staff believes keeping the zoning designation of HC/LI would be a
better consistent zoning trend for this area. The change to commercial zoning would
create an isolated zoning area between the vicinity of Nine Mile road and Nine and Half
Mile Road which is currently all zoned HC/LI. Also, due to the fact HC/LI allows for
residential uses already and the change to Com zoning would create an isolated
zoning designation area between the vicinity of Nine Mile road and Nine and Half Mile
Road which currently all have a zoning category of HC/LI. The zoning HC/LI does allow
for residential uses but must be part of a predominantly commercial development.
Predominantly commercial development is development for which more than two-thirds
of the development parcel area and more than two-thirds of all gross floor area within the
parcel is devoted to commercial use.

Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Staff has reviewed the Rezoning Case
(Z)-2017-04, 9700 Pensacola Blvd (US29), agenda item for the Planning Board meeting
scheduled for September 5th, 2017. 
 
Currently, there are no Roadway Improvement Projects programmed in the County’s
Capital Improvement Program within the vicinity of the subject parcel. However, The
Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) currently has an ongoing Roadway
Widening Project (6-Laning) of US29 from I-10 to north of Nine and One-Half Mile Road.
Per FDOT, the construction is expected to be completed calendar year 2020.
Per the Florida-Alabama TPO’s Congestion Management Process Plan, N. Palafox Hwy
is currently functioning within its allowable capacity for traffic volumes between the
segment of Pensacola Boulevard and Nine Mile Road. The maximum level-of-service
(LOS) for the roadway segment is LOS D (17,700 trips/day), and currently the roadway
segment is functioning at a LOS C (13,667 trips/day) and is expected to remain at a LOS
C and exceed 16,600 trips/day by Year 2024. However, once the 6-laning construction
project is completed, referenced above, the LOS should see some level of additional
relief.
 
At this time, TTO has no immediate comments for the proposed rezoning request.
TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the comments
above hold no bearing on future TTO comments during the Development Review process.

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses 



Compatible with surrounding uses 
Whether all land uses, development activities, and conditions allowed by the proposed
zoning are compatible with the surrounding conforming uses, activities and conditions
and are able to coexist in relative proximity to them in a stable fashion over time such
that no use, activity, or condition negatively impacts another. The appropriateness of the
rezoning is not limited to any specific use that may be proposed but is evident for all
permitted uses of the requested zoning.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is not compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.
Within the 500' radius area, staff observed properties with zoning districts HDMU,
HDR, and HCLI.  The majority of the parcels within the 500' area are currently being
used or listed by the Property Appraiser as a mixed of commercial uses and residential
uses the change to commercial zoning would not be compatible with the existing
surrounding uses that is commercial. The adjacent property to the east is currently a
warehouse, to the north is a RV park, store, auto repair, office, whole sale shop and two
residential homes. To the south of is a vacant commercial property, store, and
warehouse properties. Across Pensacola Blvd to the west is a storage facility, office, and
a auto repair service. Any new development will go through the Site Plan Review
Process and must meet all LDC requirements for buffering, setbacks, access, and
stormwater as well as other code requirements that may apply.

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Changed conditions 
Whether the area to which the proposed rezoning would apply has changed, or is
changing, to such a degree that it is in the public interest to encourage new uses,
density, or intensity in the area through rezoning.

FINDINGS
Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property.

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Development patterns
Whether the proposed rezoning would contribute to or result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment would not result in a logical and orderly development
pattern due to the proximity to major roads and a already established mix use
of commercial business/residential uses surrounding the parcel in all directions. The
proposed Commercial zoning is a suitable replacement of the existing HC/LI zoning for
the need of a assisting living facility land use to accommodate the suggested residential
development. However, due to the mix of residential and mostly commercial uses in the
area, the existing HC/LI is a more suitable zoning designation for the area of commercial
growth due to the proximity of less than a half mile away from a minor arterial road, Nine
Mile Road. The current zoning of HC/LI has a location criteria for all new non-residential
uses proposed within the HC/LI district which is a half-mile away from a major



intersection where two arterial roads meet. Escambia County has limited arterial roads
meeting arterial road intersection within a half-a-mile for heavy commercial and light
industrial uses. Changing the zoning to commercial would change the availability
of HC/LI that is already meets the locational criteria.   

Criterion (f) Effect on natural environment   LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)

Whether the proposed rezoning would increase the probability of any significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not
indicated on the subject property. When applicable, further review during the Site Plan
Review process will be necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse
impact on the natural environment.

Attachments
Working Case File



 

 

 

 

 

Z-2017-04 

 
 



500 Foot Buffer
2500 Foot Buffer
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD
WETLANDS_20060 2,000 4,000 6,000

Ft

Z-2017-04
LOCATION & WETLAND MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher

TEN MILE ROAD
PENSACO

LA BLVD

W DETROIT BLVD

WEST NINE MILE ROAD

ROBERTS ROAD

C
H

EM
STR

A
N

D
 R

D

E JOHNSON AVE

EAST NINE MILE ROAD



PE
N

S
A

C
O

LA
 B

LV
D

PE
N

S
A

C
O

LA
 B

LV
D

E NINE AND ONE
HALF MILE RD

MCKINNON LN

W NINE AND ONEHALF MILE RD
N

 P
A

LA
FO

X
 S

T

P
E

N
S

A
C

O
L

A
B

LV
D

PENSACO
LA

BLVD

H
U

C
K

LE
B

E
R

R
Y

 L
N

Com

Com

HC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LI

HDMU

HDMU

HDMU

HDMU

HDR

500 Foot Buffer
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 250 500 750

Ft

Z-2017-04
ZONING MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher



PE
N

S
A

C
O

LA
 B

LV
D

MCKINNON LN

PE
N

S
A

C
O

LA
 B

LV
D

E NINE AND ONE
HALF MILE RD

W NINE AND ONEHALF MILE RD
N

 P
A

LA
FO

X
 S

T

CHAUNCEY

ST

P
E

N
S

A
C

O
L

A

B
LV

D

PENSACO
LA

BLVD

H
U

C
K

LE
B

E
R

R
Y

 L
N

C

MU-U

500 Foot Buffer
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 250 500 750

Ft

Z-2017-04
EXISTING FLU MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher



PE
N

S
A

C
O

LA
 B

LV
D

MCKINNON LN

PE
N

S
A

C
O

LA
 B

LV
D

E NINE AND ONE
HALF MILE RD

W NINE AND ONEHALF MILE RD
N

 P
A

LA
FO

X
 S

T

CHAUNCEY

ST

P
E

N
S

A
C

O
L

A

B
LV

D

PENSACO
LA

BLVD

H
U

C
K

LE
B

E
R

R
Y

 L
N

C

MU-U

500 Foot Buffer
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 250 500 750

Ft

Z-2017-04 & SSA-2017-04
PROPOSED FLU MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher

MU-U



PE
N

S
A

C
O

LA
 B

LV
D

P
EN

S
A

C
O

LA

B
LV

D

E NINE AND ONE
HALF MILE RD

MCKINNON LN

W NINE AND ONEHALF MILE RD

N
 PA

LA
FO

X
 S

T

CHAUNCEY

ST

P
E

N
S

A
C

O
L

A

B
LV

D

H
U

C
K

LE
B

E
R

R
Y

 L
N

PENSACO
LA BLVD

500 Foot Buffer
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 250 500 750

Ft

Z-2017-04
ELU MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher

OFFICE

SF

SF

SF

WAREHOUSE

MH

MH

V

WAREHOUSE

MF

DAY CARE

WAREHOUSE
OFFICE

STORE

VC

SF
MH PARK

WHOLE SALECHRUCH

STORE

AUTO REPAIR
OFFICE

SF
SF

AUTO REPAIR

MH

SF

SF

SF

V

WAREHOUSE

MH

AUTO REPAIR

OFFICE

STORAGE



PE
N

S
A

C
O

LA
 B

LV
D

PE
N

S
A

C
O

LA
B

LV
D

W NINE AND ONEHALF MILE RD

MCKINNON
LN

N
 P

A
LA

FO
X

 S
T

P
E

N
S

A
C

O
L

A

B
LV

D
PENSACO

LA BLVD

E NINE AND ONE
HALF MILE RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD
Escambia_2016_Aerials.ecw
RGB

Red:    Red
Green: Green
Blue:   Blue0 210 420 630

Ft

Z-2017-04
AERIAL MAP

SF

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher



Public Hearing Signs



Looking Southwest across Highway 29



Looking North along Highway 29



Looking East onto the subject property.



Looking Southeast 



Last Updated: 1/10/17

Escambia County Planning and Zoning
Development Services Department

3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, FL 32505

Phone: (850) 595-3475 • Fax: (850) 595-3481

http://myescambia.com/business/ds

Rezoning Application
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY - Case Number:'££££2^L Accepted by: 4 Ci

1. Contact Information:

inn- bU/,PB Meeting

A. Property Owner/Applicant: CoPter Complex, LLC
Mailing Address: 517 Dracena Way Gulf Breeze, FL 32561
Business Phone: Cell: 850-232-9853

Email:

b. Authorized Agent (if applicable): Wiley C'Buddy" Page
Mailing Address: 5337 Hamilton Lane Pace, FL 32571

Business Phone: Cell: 850-232-0853
EmaiI. budpage1@att.net

Note: Owner must complete the attached Agent Affidavit. If there is more than one owner, each owner must

complete an Agent Affidavit. Application will bevoided ifchanges tothis application arefour/p.}

2. Property Information: ^^700 f^&^SfVLOU^ 6L-VF?
A. Existing Street Address:-9^^^^^^^^ Pensacola 32534

08-18-30-3201*007^005Parcel ID (s):

A

&4S€rr 5.^7 <£&~B. Total acreage of the subject property

C. Existing Zoning: _S_
Proposed Zoning: ^mm
FLU Category; /*^0Wr\

D. Is the subject property developed (if yes, explain): Group Living

E. Sanitary Sewer: • Septic:

-2-





























3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Development Services Manager 
   Development Services Department 
 
FROM: David Forte, Division Manager 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 
DATE: July 31, 2017 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – Z-2017-04 
 

TTO Staff has reviewed the Rezoning Case (Z)-2017-04, 9700 Pensacola Blvd 
(US29), agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled for September 5th, 
2017. Please see the below comments. 
 

Currently, there are no Roadway Improvement Projects programmed in the 
County’s Capital Improvement Program within the vicinity of the subject parcel. 
However, The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) currently has an ongoing 
Roadway Widening Project (6-Laning) of US29 from I-10 to north of Nine and One-Half 
Mile Road. Per FDOT, the construction is expected to be completed calendar year 
2020. 

Per the Florida-Alabama TPO’s Congestion Management Process Plan, N. 
Palafox Hwy is currently functioning within its allowable capacity for traffic volumes 
between the segment of Pensacola Boulevard and Nine Mile Road. The maximum 
level-of-service (LOS) for the roadway segment is LOS D (17,700 trips/day), and 
currently the roadway segment is functioning at a LOS C (13,667 trips/day) and is 
expected to remain at a LOS C and exceed 16,600 trips/day by Year 2024. However, 
once the 6-laning construction project is completed, referenced above, the LOS should 
see some level of additional relief.  

 
At this time, TTO has no immediate comments for the proposed rezoning 

request. TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 
comments above hold no bearing on future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process.  
 
 
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. B.           
Meeting Date: 09/05/2017  
CASE : Z-2017-16
APPLICANT: David Fitzpatrick, Agent for Stafford Development Group,

Owner 

ADDRESS: 5940 Saufley Pines Road 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 02-2S-31-3000-000-009
FUTURE LAND USE: I, Industrial (MU-S, Mixed-Use

Suburban pending Small Scale
Review)

 

DISTRICT: 2  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 10/05/2017 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (25 du/acre)

TO: MDR, Medium Density Residential district (10 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
Whether the proposed rezoning is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of
the Comprehensive Plan and not in conflict with any of the plan provisions

Comp Plan Policy (CPP) FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories.
The Industrial (I) Future Land Use (FLU) category is intended for a mix of industrial
development and ancillary office and commercial uses that are deemed to be compatible
with adjacent or nearby properties. Industrial areas shall facilitate continued industrial
operations within the County and provide jobs and employment security for present and

↵

↵



operations within the County and provide jobs and employment security for present and
future residents.
Range of allowable uses include: Light to Intensive Industrial, Ancillary Retail and Office,
No new residential development is allowed.
The Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) Future Land Use (FLU) category is
intended for a mix of residential and nonresidential uses while promoting compatible infill
development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses. Range of allowable
uses include: Residential, Retail and Services, Professional Office, Recreational
Facilities, Public and Civic. The maximum residential density is twenty five dwelling units
per acre.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment to MDR is not consistent with the current Industrial (I) Future
Land Use (FLU) category as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. The current FLU of Industrial (I) is
intended for industrial developments to be compatible to surrounding properties and
does not allow for residential uses. The applicant is currently requesting a FLUM
amendment from I to MU-S and if the FLUM amendment is approved, the requested
zoning of MDR  will be compatible with the MU-S designation.

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is
consistent with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.
Sec. 3-2.7 Medium Density Residential district (MDR)
(a) Purpose. The Medium Density Residential district establishes appropriate areas and
land use regulations for residential uses at medium densities within suburban or urban
areas. The primary intent of the district is to provide for residential neighborhood
development in an efficient urban pattern of well-connected streets and at greater
dwelling unit density than the Low Density Residential district. Residential uses within
the MDR district are limited to single-family and two-family dwellings. The district
allows non-residential uses that are compatible with suburban and urban residential
neighborhoods. 
(b) Permitted uses. Permitted uses within the MDR district are limitedto the
following :
(1) Residential.
(a)Manufactured (mobile) homes only within manufactured home parks or subdivisions.
No new or
expanded manufactured home parks, and new or expanded manufactured home
subdivisions only on land 
zoned V-4 prior to adoption of MDR zoning.
(b)Single-family dwellings (other than manufactured homes), detached and only one per
lot, excluding accessory dwellings. Accessory dwellings only on lots one acre or larger.
Attached single-family dwellings and zero lot line subdivisions only on land zoned R-3 or
V-4 prior to adoption of MDR zoning.
(c)Two-family dwellings only on land zoned R-3 or V-4 prior to adoption of MDR zoning,
and multi-family dwellings up to four units per dwelling (quadruplex) only on land zoned
V-4 prior to MDR zoning.



See also conditional uses in this district.
(2) Retail sales. No retail sales.
(3) Retail services. No retail services. See conditional uses in this district.
(4) Public and civic. Public utility structures, excluding telecommunications towers. See
also conditional uses in this district.
(5) Recreation and entertainment.
a. Marinas, private.
b. Parks without permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.See also conditional
uses in this district.
(6) Industrial and related. No industrial or related uses.
(7) Agricultural and related. Agricultural production limited to food primarily for personal
consumption by the producer, but no farm animals.
See also conditional uses in this district.

FINDINGS
 The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the LDC. As per
LDC 3-2.7, MDR allows residential uses, no retail sales or services no industrial uses,
and would not be in conflict with any portion of the code.

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses 
Whether all land uses, development activities, and conditions allowed by the proposed
zoning are compatible with the surrounding conforming uses, activities and conditions
and are able to coexist in relative proximity to them in a stable fashion over time such
that no use, activity, or condition negatively impacts another. The appropriateness of the
rezoning is not limited to any specific use that may be proposed but is evident for all
permitted uses of the requested zoning.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.
Within the 500' radius area, staff observed properties with zoning districts LDR, MDR,
Pub, HC/LI. The proposed amendment would be consistent with the surrounding uses
and coexist without producing negative impacts on the neighboring properties. Rezoning
the parcel to MDR would allow residential development which would be compatible to the
single family homes that exist in the area instead of industrial type businesses which
may cause more noise, dust and overall nuisance to the adjoining neighbors. Density
and intensity would be decreased in the area through the rezoning from HC/LI to MDR.

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Changed conditions 
Whether the area to which the proposed rezoning would apply has changed, or is
changing, to such a degree that it is in the public interest to encourage new uses,
density, or intensity in the area through rezoning.

FINDINGS
In 2016, on the adjoining 32 +/- acre parcel, the applicant requested a rezoning from
HC/LI to MDR and a large scale map amendment from Industrial to Mixed-Use



Suburban. The Board of County Commissioners approved both at the January 5, 2017
Board meeting. The proposed 1.43 +/- acre parcel will be incorporated into the larger
parcel to be part of a residential subdivision. The applicant is currently requesting a
Future Land Use map amendment (FLUM) from Industrial to Mixed-Use Suburban. This
rezoning is contingent upon the FLUM approval. The rezoning is a decrease in density
as well as uses, and the FLUM change is a less intense category, making both more
compatible with the surrounding residential neighborhood.

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Development patterns
Whether the proposed rezoning would contribute to or result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development pattern.
The area consists of single-family homes therefore changing the zoning to MDR will be
less intense than the current zoning of Industrial and allow for more single family
development. All new development must go through the Development Review Process
and comply with all regualtions in the LDC.

Criterion (f) LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Effect on natural environment 
Whether the proposed rezoning would increase the probability of any significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not 
indicated on the subject property. When applicable, further review during the Site Plan
Review process will be necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse
impact on the natural environment.

Attachments
Working Case File



 

 

 

 

 

Z-2017-16 

 
 



SAUF LEY
F IELD RD

LILAH
LN

SAUFLEY PINES RD

M
A

R
IN

E
R

S
C

T

SPRAGUE
AVE

COLE M
O

PLACE

D
R

CER NY RD

SHADOW

GROVE B LV D MULD
O ONC

IR

BIG TOE
CIR

PERKINS
ST

WEST WIND

CIR

BELLVIEW AVE

EL CIN O

D
R

TU
R

K
E

Y
 R

D

LOVALEEN
CIR

CAH A BACI R

SCOTLAND RD

S
A

U
FL

E
Y

P
IN

E
S

 C
T

FOOTP
R

I
N T D

R

Z ACHARY
BL VD

N
B

L
U

E
A

N
G

E
L

P
K

W
Y

N
A

N
D

IN
A

D
R

BAREFOOT
BLVD

SEITZ DR

S
C

O
TL

A
N

D
C

IR

GRE E
N

ACRE S

D
R

O
A

K
C

A
LL

A
 D

R

RABY
AVE

PRISSEY ST

TU
R

K
E

Y
 R

D

N BLUE
ANGEL LN

M
IL

F
O

R
D

R
D

O
R

M
ON

D

D
R

AL EKAI DR
KAINUI  DR

BLUE
ANGEL CT

V
IL

L
E

N
A

U
V

E
 L

N

P
R

IN
C

ET
O

N
D

R

TREAHNA
RD

SHELLY STBRADLEY
ST

TA
L

L
S

H
IP

L
N

R
E

G
A

L
O

DR

E
A

S
T

 F
E

N
C

E
 R

D

D
A

N

D EL IO
N

L
N

PERKINS S
T

PERKINS ST

SAUFLEY FIELD RD

S
UN

TAN

CIR

SP

A N IS

H

OA K D R

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

Z-2017-16
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



Pub

MDR

MDR
HC/LI

LDR

LDR

LDR

LDR

LDR

LDR

HC/LI

HDMU

SAUFLEYPINES RD

EL
C

IN
O

 D
R

E
A

S
T

 F
E

N
C

E
 R

D

SH ADO W

G RO VE B LVD

TU
R

K
E

Y
R

D

CA
H ABAC IR

KENW
O O D D R

G
NARL

Y

O
AKS

C
IR

TU
R

K
E

Y
R

D

PERKINS ST

PRIN
CETON

D
R

SAUFLEY FIELD RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2017-16
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer

SAUFLEY PINES RD



P

I

MU-S

MU-S

MU-S

MU-S

MU-S

MU-S

MU-S

I

SAUFLEYPINES RD

EL
C

IN
O

 D
R

E
A

S
T

 F
E

N
C

E
 R

D

SH ADO W

G RO VE B LVD

TU
R

K
E

Y
R

D

CA
H ABAC IR

KENW
O O D D R

G
NARL

Y

O
AKS

C
IR

TU
R

K
E

Y
R

D

PERKINS ST

PRIN
CETON

D
R

SAUFLEY FIELD RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2017-16
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer

SAUFLEY PINES RD



SAUFLEYPINES RD

E
LC

IN
O

 D
R

E
A

S
T

 F
E

N
C

E
 R

D

SHADOW

GROVE BLVD

TU
R

K
EY

R
D

CA HABAC IR

KENWO OD DR

GNARLY

OAKS
C

IR

TU
R

K
E

Y
R

D

PERKINS ST

PRIN
CETON

D
R

SAUFLEY FIELD RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2017-16
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer

SAUFLEY PINES RD

SFD
SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD
SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD
SFD

SFD

SFD

SFD

SFDSFD

SFD

SFD

VACANT



SAUFLEYPINES RD

S
H

A
D

O
W

G
R

O
V

E
B

L
V

D

TU
R

K
E

Y
 R

DP
R

IN
C

E
TO

N
 D

R

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 100 200 300

Ft

Z-2017-16
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



Public Notice Sign





Subject Property



Subject Property



Looking east from subject 
property on Saufley Pines Rd



Looking south from 
subject property



Looking west along Saufley Pines 
Rd from subject property



Last Updated: 3/16/17-Rezoning

Escambia County Planning and Zoning
Development Services Department

3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, FL 32505

Phone: (850) 595-3475 • Fax: (850) 595-3481
http://mvescambia.com/business/ds

Rezoning Application .
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY -Case Number?-Oon ' (I Accepted by: PB Meeting: \e^r5! ZO17

1. Contact Information:

A. Property Owner/Applicant: "fexpo S7P*^c^Q &e <f>(tef<xZO Q3J&tiP<fl€rt ty&ftt/c
Mailing Address: 3S~7 cw£AM3£ Oft^S &<J/Q SA/QtoUM&rr fLZ^Ji

Business Phone: SSfr^fgSlllO Cell: 9>5V " ~~b!> (*>S'*>!>rO

Email: T^tA^^O (2 hegoW>NJ br^o-rhe<rs £W5-Wu<Jfie> /Q . o»/n
B. Authorized Agent (if applicable): QA0K7 iA) FiTT^/rr^O^, £&j3A«

Mailing Address: lQ-/L^O M ^/VtAfoK S'T l%N5A-<~oi-A. ft ">ZS3> i

Business Phone: SSgD^fe&Z&feTZ Cell: ^e5D" (^t'llHI
Email: J[<xv jS (g. 4-v-V3--e*o^ ;^^
Note: Owner must complete the attached AgentAffidavit. Ifthereis more than one owner,each owner must

complete anAgentAffidavit. Application will be voided ifchanges to this application arefound.

2. Property Information:

A. Existing Street Address: S^Q f,AO(=^e>f 0J&& Q^P*r>

Parcel ID (s): g>2-2,5- ^l~ ^ooo-^oo-Ooq

B. Total acreage of thesubject property: I"43

C. Existing Zoning: f\^/LZE
Proposed Zoning: [AQ(Z.

FLU Category: ^U^M^V X T&u? fh^<* C4rVArfl-WT& /HUS

D. Is the subject property developed (if yes, explain): yfe $ - £IM*U5 flfafltfO/ HoW^

E. Sanitary Sewer: Septic: v*""

-2-





















3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Division Manager 
   Development Services Department 
 
FROM: David Forte, Division Manager 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 
DATE: August 8, 2017 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – Z-2017-16 
 

TTO Staff has reviewed the Rezoning Case (Z)-2017-16, 5940 Saufley Pines 
Road, agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled for September 5th, 2017. 
Please see the below comments. 
 

Currently, there are no Roadway Improvement Projects programmed in the 
County’s Capital Improvement Program within the vicinity of the subject parcel.  

 
At this time, TTO has no immediate comments for the proposed rezoning 

request. TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 
comments above hold no bearing on future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process.  
 
 
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. C.           
Meeting Date: 09/05/2017  
CASE : Z-2017-14
APPLICANT: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for Crimson Nine Mile Road

Holdings, LLC, Owner 

ADDRESS: SW Corner of Nine Mile Road and I-10 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 10-1S-31-1401-000-002
FUTURE LAND USE: MU-U, Mixed-Use Urban  
DISTRICT: 1  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 10/05/2017 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (25 du/acre)

TO: Com, Commercial district (25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
Whether the proposed rezoning is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of
the Comprehensive Plan and not in conflict with any of the plan provisions

CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. The Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) Future Land
Use (FLU) category is intended for an intense mix of residential and non-residential uses
while promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban
land uses within the category as a whole.
Range of Allowable Uses: Residential, retail and services, professional office, light
industrial, recreational facilities, public and civic, limited agriculture. The residential
maximum density is 25 du/acre.



maximum density is 25 du/acre.

FLU 1.5.1 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote the
efficient use of existing public roads, utilities, and service infrastructure, the County will
encourage the redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development
densities and intensities located in the MU-S, MU-U, Commercial, and Industrial Future
Land Use categories (with
the exception of residential development).

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment to Commercial is consistent with the intent and purpose of
Future Land Use category MU-U, as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. The MU-U FLU does
provide allowances for mixed commercial and residential developments; based on the
application, the intent is for a mixed development on-site. The proposed amendment
would promote the efficient use of existing roads, utilities and infrastructure making it
compatible with the intent of CPP FLU 1.5.1.

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is
consistent with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

LDC 3-1.6 Compatibility
(a)Generally. Zoning districts provide the primary means to establish and maintain the
necessary balance between the needs and interests of different land uses, allowing
neighboring uses to coexist successfully in a stable fashion over time, protecting the
investments in each. Although zoning separates generally incompatible development,
inclusion as a permitted use within a district does not alone ensure compatibility with
other district uses.
(b) Location criteria. Location criteria are established within some zoning districts to
promote compatibility among uses, especially new non-residential uses in relation to
existing residential uses. Most criteria are designed to create smooth transitions of use
intensity from large-scale concentrations of general commercial uses near major street
intersections to small-scale dispersed neighborhood commercial uses in proximity to
residential areas. Such transitions prevent the adverse impacts of continuous strip
commercial development along major streets and avoid negative or blighting influences
of some commercial uses on adjacent residential neighborhoods.

Sec. 3-2.11 Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (HC/LI).
(a) Purpose. The Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial (HC/LI) district establishes
appropriate areas and land use regulations for a complementary mix of industrial uses
with a broad range of commercial activities. The primary intent of the district is
to allow light manufacturing, large-scale wholesale and retail uses, major services, and
other more intense uses than allowed in the Commercial district. The variety and
intensity of non-residential uses within the HC/LI district is limited by their
compatibility with surrounding uses. All commercial and industrial operations are limited
to the confines of buildings and not allowed to produce undesirable effects on other



property. To retain adequate area for commercial and industrial activities, other uses
within the district are limited.

Sec. 3-2.10 Commercial district (Com).
(a) Purpose. The Commercial (Com) district establishes appropriate areas and land use
regulations for general commercial activities, especially the retailing of commodities and
services. The primary intent of the district is to allow more diverse
and intense commercial uses than the neighborhood commercial allowed within the
mixed-use districts. To maintain compatibility with surrounding uses, all commercial
operations within the Commercial district are limited to the confines of buildings and
not allowed to produce undesirable effects on surrounding property. To retain adequate
area for commercial activities, new and expanded residential development within the
district is limited, consistent with the Commercial (C) future land use
category.
(b) Permitted uses. Permitted uses within the Commercial district are limited to the
following:
   (1) Residential. The following residential uses are allowed throughout the district, but if
within the Commercial (C) future land  
        use category they are permitted only if part of a predominantly commercial
development:
        a. Group living, excluding dormitories, fraternity and sorority houses, and residential
facilities providing substance abuse 
            treatment, post-incarceration reentry, or similar services.
        b. Manufactured (mobile) homes, including new or expanded manufactured home
parks or subdivisions.
        c. Single-family dwellings (other than manufactured homes), detached or attached,
including townhouses and zero lot line   
           subdivisions.
       d. Two-family and multi-family dwellings.
See also conditional uses in this district.
  (2) Retail sales. Retail sales, including Low-THC marijuana dispensing facilities, sales
of alcoholic beverages and automotive   
        fuels, but excluding motor vehicle sales and permanent outdoor storage. See also
conditional uses in this district.
  (3) Retail services. The following retail services, excluding permanent outdoor storage:
        a. Car washes, automatic or manual, full service or self-serve.
        b. Child care facilities.
        c. Hotels, motels and all other public lodging, including boarding and rooming
houses.
        d. Personal services, including those of beauty shops, health clubs, pet groomers,
dry cleaners and tattoo parlors.
        e. Professional services, including those of realtors, bankers, accountants,
engineers, architects, dentists, physicians, and  
            attorneys.
        f. Repair services, including appliance repair, furniture refinishing and upholstery,
watch and jewelry repair, small engine and 
           motor services, but excluding major motor vehicle or boat service or repair, and
outdoor work.



outdoor work.
       g. Restaurants and brewpubs, including on-premises consumption of alcoholic
beverages, drive-in and drive-through   
           service,  and brewpubs with the distribution of on-premises produced alcoholic
beverages for off-site sales. The parcel 
           boundary of any restaurant or brewpub with drive-in or drive through service shall
be at least 200 feet from any LDR or  
           MDR zoning district unless separated by a 50-foot or wider street right-of-way.
See also conditional uses in this district.
 (4) Public and civic.
      a. Broadcast stations with satellite dishes and antennas, including towers.
      b. Cemeteries, including family cemeteries.
      c. Community service facilities, including auditoriums, libraries, museums, and
neighborhood centers.
      d. Educational facilities, including preschools, K-12, colleges, and vocational schools.
      e. Emergency service facilities, including law enforcement, fire fighting, and medical
assistance.
      f. Foster care facilities.
      g. Funeral establishments.
      h. Hospitals.
      i. Offices for government agencies or public utilities.
      j. Places of worship.
      k. Public utility structures, including telecommunications towers, but excluding any
industrial uses.
      l. Warehousing or maintenance facilities for government agencies or for public
utilities.
See also conditional uses in this district.
 (5) Recreation and entertainment.
      a. Campgrounds and recreational vehicle parks on lots five acres or larger.
      b. Indoor recreation or entertainment facilities, including movie theaters, bowling
alleys, skating rinks, arcade amusement 
         centers, bingo facilities and shooting ranges, but excluding bars, nightclubs or
adult entertainment facilities.
      c. Marinas, private and commercial.
      d. Parks without permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.
See also conditional uses in this district.
 (6) Industrial and related.
      a. Printing, binding, lithography and publishing.
      b. Wholesale warehousing with gross floor area 10,000 sq.ft. or less per lot.
See also conditional uses in this district.
 (7) Agricultural and related.
      a. Agricultural food production primarily for personal consumption by the producer,
but no farm animals.
      b. Nurseries and garden centers, including adjoining outdoor storage or display of
plants.
      c. Veterinary clinics.
 (8) Other uses.
      a. Billboard structures.



      b. Outdoor storage if minor and customarily incidental to the allowed principal use,
and if in the rear yard, covered, and   
          screened from off-site view, unless otherwise noted.
     c. Parking garages and lots, commercial.
     d. Self-storage facilities, excluding vehicle rental.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the LDC. The
parcel's location is within a quarter of a mile from a traffic generator, the Navy Federal
Credit Union Urban Service Area, meeting the requirements identified under Sec.
3-2.10(e) Location Criteria. The assigned MU-U FLU is compatible with the requested
Commercial zoning. Based on the application, the development would concentrate the
residential aspect of the project towards the south section of the parcel, to protect the
adjacent residential uses and zoning; the commercial development would be located on
the north of the parcel towards the main roadways. If approved, any proposed
development would have to provide buffering protection between commercial and
residential activities.

Based on current development trends, mainly the expansion of operations from the Navy
Federal Union, we have experienced an increased need for residential and commercial
development, in support of the existing and expected influx of personnel. Due to the size
and location of the parcel, it appears that a balance between the needs and interests of
different land uses can be achieved, enabling neighboring uses to coexist successfully.

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses 
Whether all land uses, development activities, and conditions allowed by the proposed
zoning are compatible with the surrounding conforming uses, activities and conditions
and are able to coexist in relative proximity to them in a stable fashion over time such
that no use, activity, or condition negatively impacts another. The appropriateness of the
rezoning is not limited to any specific use that may be proposed but is evident for all
permitted uses of the requested zoning.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.
Within the 500' radius area staff observed properties with zoning districts HC/LI, HDMU,
MDR and LDR. Twenty-two single-family residences, one mobile home, three improved
agricultural residential parcels, two timber land designated parcels, one vacant
residential, one vacant commercial, two commercial offices, one commercial repair, and
one grazing land.

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Changed conditions 
Whether the area to which the proposed rezoning would apply has changed, or is
changing, to such a degree that it is in the public interest to encourage new uses,
density, or intensity in the area through rezoning.



FINDINGS
Staff found changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property.The
current expansion of the Navy Federal Credit Union, one of the primary private
employers in the area, has resulted in an increased demand for residential units and
commercial services. The entire character of the area has been drastically changed by
the new construction of facilities in support of the Credit Union and the direct access to
Interstate 10. The parcel is currently zoned HC/LI which allows for more intense uses
and development than what the applicant is requesting under the Commercial district; by
removing the more intense heavy commercial and light industrial uses, down-zoning the
property, an assigning a more compatible and restrictive commercial zoning designation.

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Development patterns
Whether the proposed rezoning would contribute to or result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development pattern.
The commercial zoning district establishes appropriate areas and land use regulations
for general commercial activities, especially the retailing of commodities and services.
The primary intent of the district is to allow more diverse and intense commercial uses
than the neighborhood commercial allowed within the mixed-use districts. To maintain
compatibility with surrounding uses, all commercial operations within the commercial
district are limited to the confines of buildings and not allowed to produce undesirable
effects on surrounding property. The requested decrease in zoning intensity to
commercial would effectively create and serve as a transitional district between medium
density residential districts and the heavy commercial and light industrial uses. 

Criterion f., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Effect on natural environment
Whether the proposed rezoning would increase the probability of any significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were indicated 
on the subject property. FEMA Special Flood Hazard Areas are also present on portions
of the parcel. When applicable, further review during the Site Plan Review process will
be necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse impact on the
natural environment.

Attachments
Working Case File



 

 

 

 

 

Z-2017-14 

 
 



WILDE
LAKE BLVD

TRAIL

W

OOD D
R

C
H

E
L

L
IE

R
D

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

DUNAWAY LN

ST
IL

L
E

R
LA

K
E

R
D

C
O

PPER
R

ID
GE DR

M O
S

S
Y

C R
E

E
K

H

E R I TAGE

O AK S DR

BL A CKH O

RSE
CIR

M
ILL

ET

CIR

INTERSTATE

10

TALL
PINES LN

ABBA LN

H
E

ATHER
DR

W NINE MILE RD

TARA RD

YOUPON RD

CORRAL DR

S PI
D

ER

L I L
Y

W
A

Y

H IGHWAY297A

PINE

F
O

R

E S
T

R
D

C
A

L
I C

O
D

R

DAHOON
DR

RU
SH

LN

MOBILEHWY

W NINE
MILE RD

E
IG

H
T

M
IL

E
C

R
E

E
K

R
D

JA
M

E
S

V
IL

L
E

R
D

LUPI N
E

LN

BOW
LI NGGREEN

W AY

TA
R

A
C

IR

JASON DR

K
L

O
N

D
IK

E
 R

D

B O NA
NZA DR

RISEN DR
CAMERO

LN

WILDE
LAKE BLVD

FOREST
HILLS DR

DEERFIELD
DR

P
L

Y
M

O
U

T
H

LN

S

HI GHWAY 97

SOLO DOS
FAMILIAF

ILEX
LN

MAN O
WAR CIR

JA
D

E
A

C
R

E
S

 R
D

N
E

IG
H

T
M

IL
E

C
R

E
E

K
R

D

PA D DOC
K

W AY

JOSHUA DR

FO
X

TAIL

LOOP
W

IN
D

S
O

N
G

 L
NINTERSTATE10 RAMP

HELMS RD

B OCAGE RD

JAMESVILLE
LN

S
U

R
R

E
Y

D
R

A
L

T
A

V
IS

T
A

 D
R

D
U

N
W

A
L

T
R

D
PE BB LEC R EEK DR

M
ARS

H

EL
DER

DR

S
U

N D
IA

L

C IR

DEE

R FIELD D R

CI
TATION

DR

SHERRILANE DR

JU

NO

CI
R

PURSELL LN

CHIMN
E

Y

PINE
S

D
R

SA
LT GRA SSDR W

P
IN

E
C

O
N

E
D

R
S

A
L

T

G R A S

S
D

R

S
A

N
DI

CREST

DR

HOLT

C
IR

P
IN

E
 F

O
R

E
S

T
 R

D

S
T

A
G

E
C

O
A

C
H

 R
D

W
IL

S
H

IR
E

 R
D

SANDICREST DR

A
SHB U

R
Y

L
N

E IGHT M
IL

E

CREEK
R

D

CRE E K
W

O
O

D
D

R

DEVINE FARM RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 2,000 4,000 6,000

Ft

Z-2017-14
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



W NINE
MILE RD

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10
IN

T
E

R
S

TATE

10
R

AM
P

P
E

B
B

L
E

C
R

E
E

K
R

D

P
E

B
B

L
E

C
R

E
E

K
 C

T

P
E

B
B

L
E

C
R

E
E

K
 P

L
P

A
R

L
A

N
G

E
C

IRINTERSTA
TE

10
RAM

P

TARA RD

YOUPON RD

D
E

S
T

R
E

H
A

N
R

D

W NINE MILE RD

TA
R

A
C

IR

K
L

O
N

D
IK

E
 R

D

DEERFIELD
DR

C
A

L
IC

O
D

R

B
E

N
T

W
O

O
D

 L
N

B
A

R
K

W
O

O
D

LN

S
A

L
T

G
R

A
S

S
D

R

INTERSTATE 10 RAMPINTERSTATE10 RAMP

BOCAGE RD

A
L

T
A

 V
IS

TA
 D

R

PEBBLECREEK DR

DEERFIELD DR

ASHBURY LN

WILDE LAKE BLVD

Com

NONE

Rec

HC/LI

LDR
MDR

HDMU

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 825 1,650 2,475

Ft

Z-2017-14
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



W NINE
MILE RD

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

P
E

B
B

L
E

C
R

E
E

K
R

D

P
E

B
B

L
E

C
R

E
E

K
 C

T

P
E

B
B

L
E

C
R

E
E

K
 P

L
P

A
R

L
A

N
G

E
C

IRINTERSTATE

10
RAM

P

TARA RD

YOUPON RD

D
E

S
T

R
E

H
A

N
R

D

W NINE MILE RD

TA
R

A
C

IR

K
L

O
N

D
IK

E
 R

D

DEERFIELD
DR

C
A

L
IC

O
D

R

B
E

N
T

W
O

O
D

 L
N

B
A

R
K

W
O

O
D

LN

S
A

L
T

G
R

A
S

S
D

R

INTERSTATE 10 RAMPINTERSTATE10 RAMP

BOCAGE RD

A
L

T
A

 V
IS

TA
 D

R

PEBBLECREEK DR

ASHBURY LN

DEERFIELD DR

WILDE LAKE BLVD

P

REC

MU-S

MU-U

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 825 1,650 2,475

Ft

Z-2017-14
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



INTERSTATE 10 INTERSTATE 10

IN
T

E
R

STATE

10
R

AM
P

P
E

B
B

L
E

C
R

E
E

K
R

D

P
E

B
B

L
E

C
R

E
E

K
 C

T

P
E

B
B

L
E

C
R

E
E

K
 P

L
P

A
R

L
A

N
G

E
C

IRINTERSTA
T

E

10
RA

M
P

TARA RD

YOUPON RD

W NINE
MILE RD

W NINE
MILE RD

D
E

S
T

R
E

H
A

N
R

D

TA
R

A
 C

IR

K
L

O
N

D
IK

E
 R

D

DEERFIELD
DR

N
 K

L
O

N
D

IK
E

R
D

B
E

N
T

W
O

O
D

 L
N

B
A

R
K

W
O

O
D

LN

INTERSTATE 10 RAMPINTERSTATE10 RAMP

BOCAGE RD

PEBBLE
CREEK DR

DEERFIELD DR

WILDE LAKE BLVD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 750 1,500 2,250

Ft

Z-2017-07
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer

MUTI-STORY

COMMERCIAL
REPAIR

TIMBER

COMMERCIAL
OFFICE

TIMBER

GRAZING
LAND

CROP
LAND

IMPROVED
AG-RES

MH SFR
IMPROVED
AG-RES

SFR

VAC 
COM

SFR

VAC
RES

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR
SFR

SFRSFR
SFR

IMPROVED
AG-RES

SFR

SFR

SFRSFRSFRSFR

SFR

SFR
SFR SFR SFRSFRSFRSFRSFRSFRSFR

SFR
SFRSFRSFRSFRSFR

SFR SFR SFR SFR

COM
PARKING



W NINE MILE RD
W NINE MILE RD

INTERSTATE 10 INTERSTATE 10

IN
T

E
R

STATE

10
R

A
M

P

P
E

B
B

L
E

C
R

E
E

K
R

D

P
E

B
B

L
E

C
R

E
E

K
 C

T

P
E

B
B

L
E

C
R

E
E

K
 P

L
P

A
R

L
A

N
G

E
C

IRINTERSTA
TE

10
RAM

P

TARA RD

YOUPON RD
D

E
S

T
R

E
H

A
N

R
D

TA
R

A
 C

IR

K
L

O
N

D
IK

E
 R

D

DEERFIELD
DR

N
 K

L
O

N
D

IK
E

R
D

B
E

N
T

W
O

O
D

 L
N

B
A

R
K

W
O

O
D

LN

INTERSTATE 10 RAMPINTERSTATE10 RAMP

BOCAGE RD

PEBBLE
CREEK DR

DEERFIELD DR

WILDE LAKE BLVD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 750 1,500 2,250

Ft

Z-2017-14
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



Public Hearing 
Sign



Looking East onto Nine Mile Road



Looking North from Parcel



Looking South 
onto Parcel



Looking West onto Nine Mile Road



Wiley C/'Buddy" Page, MPA, APA
Professional Growth Management Services, LLC

5337 Hamilton Lane Pace, Florida 32571
Cell 850.232.9853

budpagel@att.net

July 20, 2017
VIA HAND DELIVERY

Mr. Horace Jones, Director
Escambia County Planning Department
3363 Park Avenue

Pensacola, Florida 32505

Dear Mr. Jones:

RE: Rezoning Request
Parcel No. 10-1S-31-1401-000-002

SW Corner of Nine Mile Road & 1-10

I represent Crimson Nine Mile Road Holdings, LLC - Atlanta, owners of
the property referenced above whereupon we are requesting Planning Board
consideration to rezone the 174 acre site from HC/LI to Commercial.

Our completed application is attached together with our check in the
amount of $1,275.50 for the application fee.

We will appreciate you processing our application and advise us of the
meeting dates before the Planning Board and the Escambia County Board of County
Commissioners.

Please contact me with any questions or if you require anything
further. Thank you.

Very trulyyours,

Wiley C."Bud(tiy" Page

copy: Mr. Andres Miramontes

PLANNING • ZONING • SUE SELECTION • LITIGATION SUPPORT









































3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Division Manager 
   Development Services Department 
 
FROM: David Forte, Division Manager 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 
DATE: August 8, 2017 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – Z-2017-14 
 
TTO Staff has reviewed the Rezoning Case (Z)-2017-14, Southwest Corner of I-10 & 
Nine Mile Road Interchange, Agenda Item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled for 
September 5th, 2017. Please see the below comments. 
 

Currently, there are no Roadway Improvement Projects programmed in the 
County’s Capital Improvement Program; however there is the existing 4-laning 
construction project underway by the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) 
within the vicinity of the subject parcel. As of the August 2nd, 2017 Nine Mile Road 
Project Status Meeting for the segment of CR99 (Beulah Road) to SR297 (Pine Forest 
Road), FDOT is currently estimating a construction completion date of July 2019 
(barring weather, holiday and time extensions). 

Per the Florida-Alabama TPO’s Congestion Management Process Plan, Nine 
Mile Road is currently functioning within its allowable capacity for traffic volumes 
between the segment of Beulah Road to Pine Forest Road. The maximum level-of-
service (LOS) for the roadway segment is LOS D (17,700 trips/day), and currently the 
roadway segment is functioning at a LOS C (14,123 trips/day) and is expected to 
remain at a LOS C by Year 2024 (15,603 trips/day).  

Also, the segment of SR8 (I-10) from Beulah Road to Nine Mile Road has a 
maximum LOS C (61,500 trips/day), and the roadway segment is functioning at a LOS 
B (36,519 trips/day) and is expected to remain at a LOS B by Year 2024 (40,319 
trips/day). 

 
At this time, TTO has no immediate comments for the proposed rezoning 

request. 
 
Note: TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 
comments above hold no bearing on future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process.  



 
 
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. D.           
Meeting Date: 09/05/2017  
CASE : Z-2017-15
APPLICANT: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for The Dawson Company,

Owner 

ADDRESS: 3811 W Nine Mile Road 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 10-1S-31-2100-000-001
FUTURE LAND USE: MU-U, Mixed-Use Urban  
DISTRICT: 1  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 10/05/2017 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: HDMU, High Density Mixed-use district (25 du /acre)

TO:  Com, Commercial district (25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
Whether the proposed rezoning is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of
the Comprehensive Plan and not in conflict with any of the plan provisions

CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. The Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) Future
Land Use (FLU) category is intended for an intense mix of residential and non-residential
uses while promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and
suburban land uses within the category as a whole.
Range of Allowable Uses: Residential, retail and services, professional office, light
industrial, recreational facilities, public and civic, limited agriculture. The maximum



residential density is 25 dwelling units per acre.

FLU 1.5.1 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote the
efficient use of existing public roads, utilities, and service infrastructure, the County will
encourage the redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development
densities and intensities located in the MU-S, MU-U, Commercial, and Industrial Future
Land Use categories (with
the exception of residential development).

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment to Commercial is consistent with the intent and purpose of
Future Land Use category MU-U, as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. The range of allowable
uses under the MU-U FLU category provides for a mixture of commercial and residential
development, as described in the application. The property is located in a section along
Nine Mile road that has been under expansion and development for the past four years.
The project will promote the use of existing public roads, utilities and infrastructure,
fulfilling the requirements under CPP FLU 1.5.1.   

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is
consistent with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

Sec. 3-2.9 High Density Mixed-use district (HDMU).
(a) Purpose. The High Density Mixed-use (HDMU) district establishes appropriate areas
and land use regulations for a complimentary mix of high density residential uses and
compatible non-residential uses within urban areas. The primary intent of
the district is to provide for a mix of neighborhood retail sales, services and professional
offices with greater dwelling unit density and diversity than the Low Density Mixed-use
district. Additionally, the HDMU district is intended to rely on urban street connectivity
and encourage vertical mixes of commercial and residential uses within the same
building to accommodate a physical pattern of development characteristic of village main
streets and older neighborhood commercial areas. Residential uses within the district
include all forms of single-family, two-family and multi-family dwellings.

Sec. 3-2.10 Commercial district (Com).
(a) Purpose. The Commercial (Com) district establishes appropriate areas and land use
regulations for general commercial activities, especially the retailing of commodities and
services. The primary intent of the district is to allow more diverse
and intense commercial uses than the neighborhood commercial allowed within the
mixed-use districts. To maintain compatibility with surrounding uses, all commercial
operations within the Commercial district are limited to the confines of buildings and
not allowed to produce undesirable effects on surrounding property. To retain adequate
area for commercial activities, new and expanded residential development within the
district is limited, consistent with the Commercial (C) future land use
category.
(b) Permitted uses. Permitted uses within the Commercial district are limited to the



following:
(1) Residential. The following residential uses are allowed throughout the district, but if
within the Commercial (C) future land 
      use category they are permitted only if part of a predominantly commercial
development:
      a. Group living, excluding dormitories, fraternity and sorority houses, and residential
facilities providing substance abuse 
          treatment, post-incarceration reentry, or similar services.
      b. Manufactured (mobile) homes, including new or expanded manufactured home
parks or subdivisions.
      c. Single-family dwellings (other than manufactured homes), detached or attached,
including townhouses and 
          zero lot line subdivisions.
      d. Two-family and multi-family dwellings.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(2) Retail sales. Retail sales, including Low-THC marijuana dispensing facilities, sales
of alcoholic beverages and automotive 
       fuels, but excluding motor vehicle sales and permanent outdoor storage. See also
conditional uses in this district.
(3) Retail services. The following retail services, excluding permanent outdoor storage:
       a. Car washes, automatic or manual, full service or self-serve.
       b. Child care facilities.
       c. Hotels, motels and all other public lodging, including boarding and rooming
houses.
       d. Personal services, including those of beauty shops, health clubs, pet groomers,
dry cleaners and tattoo parlors.
       e. Professional services, including those of realtors, bankers, accountants,
engineers, architects, dentists, physicians, and   
           attorneys.
       f. Repair services, including appliance repair, furniture refinishing and upholstery,
watch and jewelry repair, small engine and   
          motor services, but excluding major motor vehicle or boat service or repair, and
outdoor work.
      g. Restaurants and brewpubs, including on-premises consumption of alcoholic
beverages, drive-in and drive-through    
          service, and brewpubs with the distribution of on-premises produced alcoholic
beverages for off-site sales. The parcel 
          boundary of any restaurant or brewpub with drive-in or drive through service shall
be at least 200 feet from any LDR or 
          MDR zoning district unless separated by a 50-foot or wider street right-of-way.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(4) Public and civic.
      a. Broadcast stations with satellite dishes and antennas, including towers.
      b. Cemeteries, including family cemeteries.
      c. Community service facilities, including auditoriums, libraries, museums, and
neighborhood centers.
      d. Educational facilities, including preschools, K-12, colleges, and vocational schools.
      e. Emergency service facilities, including law enforcement, fire fighting, and medical



      e. Emergency service facilities, including law enforcement, fire fighting, and medical
assistance.
      f. Foster care facilities.
      g. Funeral establishments.
      h. Hospitals.
      i. Offices for government agencies or public utilities.
      j. Places of worship.
      k. Public utility structures, including telecommunications towers, but excluding any
industrial uses.
      l. Warehousing or maintenance facilities for government agencies or for public
utilities.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(5) Recreation and entertainment.
      a. Campgrounds and recreational vehicle parks on lots five acres or larger.
      b. Indoor recreation or entertainment facilities, including movie theaters, bowling
alleys, skating rinks, arcade amusement     
          centers, bingo facilities and shooting ranges, but excluding bars, nightclubs or
adult entertainment facilities.
      c. Marinas, private and commercial.
      d. Parks without permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(6) Industrial and related.
      a. Printing, binding, lithography and publishing.
      b. Wholesale warehousing with gross floor area 10,000 sq.ft. or less per lot.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(7) Agricultural and related.
      a. Agricultural food production primarily for personal consumption by the producer,
but no farm animals.
      b. Nurseries and garden centers, including adjoining outdoor storage or display of
plants.
      c. Veterinary clinics.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(8) Other uses.
      a. Billboard structures.
      b. Outdoor storage if minor and customarily incidental to the allowed principal use,
and if in the rear yard, covered, and
          screened from off-site view, unless otherwise noted.
      c. Parking garages and lots, commercial.
      d. Self-storage facilities, excluding vehicle rental.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code. The Commercial district establishes appropriate areas and land use
regulations for general commercial activities, especially the retailing of commodities and
services. The primary intent of the district is to allow more diverse and intense
commercial uses than the neighborhood commercial allowed within the mixed-use
districts. To maintain compatibility with surrounding uses, all commercial operations
within the Commercial district are limited to the confines of buildings and not allowed to



within the Commercial district are limited to the confines of buildings and not allowed to
produce undesirable effects on surrounding property. The proposed amendment does
meet the location criteria requirements, as stated in Sec. 3-10(e)(2), proximity to a traffic
generator. The parcel is located near the Navy Federal Credit Union Urban Service Area. 

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses 
Whether all land uses, development activities, and conditions allowed by the proposed
zoning are compatible with the surrounding conforming uses, activities and conditions
and are able to coexist in relative proximity to them in a stable fashion over time such
that no use, activity, or condition negatively impacts another. The appropriateness of the
rezoning is not limited to any specific use that may be proposed but is evident for all
permitted uses of the requested zoning.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.
Within the 500' radius, staff observed properties with zoning districts HC/LI, MDR and
LDR.  Thirty single-family residences, four vacant residential, two conservation
properties, one retention pond, one timber land, one Navy Federal Credit Union, one
commercial office and one FDOT parcel. The buffering requirements between more
intense commercial and residential uses will be identified during the Site Pan Review
process. Based on the applicant's documentation, the proposed use will be for
commercial and residential mixed-use development, which would be similar in intensity
to other development within the surrounding area. 

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Changed conditions 
Whether the area to which the proposed rezoning would apply has changed, or is
changing, to such a degree that it is in the public interest to encourage new uses,
density, or intensity in the area through rezoning.

FINDINGS
Staff found changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property.
Development of the area on the north side of Nine Mile Road, under the Navy Federal
Credit Union Urban Service Area, has created an increase demand for residential and
commercial support services in the surrounding area; likewise, the convenience of
access to I-10 has made this area a prime focus for increased development. The
commercial zoning request would maintain the residential density, as provided under the
current zoning, but would increase the commercial allowances for the parcel.  

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Development patterns
Whether the proposed rezoning would contribute to or result in a logical and orderly
development pattern.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development pattern.



Based on the current development trends observed on area parcels adjacent to Nine
Mile road and the I-10 intersection, this area of the County is currently undergoing major
changes in the  nature and characteristics of development; taking into account the
accessibility to existing transportation corridors and available infrastructure, it appears
that the requested amendment would contribute to an orderly development pattern.  

Criterion (f) Effect on natural environment   LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)

Whether the proposed rezoning would increase the probability of any significant adverse
impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were indicated 
on the subject property. The parcel is also located in a FEMA designated Special Flood
Hazard Area (SFHA). When applicable, further review during the Site Plan Review
process will be necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse impact
on the natural environment.

Attachments
Working Case File



 

 

 

 

 

Z-2017-15 

 
 



B
O

X
E

L
D

E
R

B
L

V
D

FRANK REEDER RD

E
R

IK
A

 C
T

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

ST
IL

L
E

R
LA

K
E

R
D

B
EL

L
R

ID
G

E
D

R

M O
S

S
Y

C RE
E

K

H

E R I TAGE

O AK S DR

DUNAWAY LN

W
O

O
D

S
ID

E
R

D

ABBA LN

H
E

A
T

HER

D
R

SW O RDFERN WAY

TARA RD

YOUPON RD

CORRAL DR

SPI

D ERLIL Y W A
Y

HIGHW
AY

297A

W NINE MILE RD

C
A

L
IC

O
D

R

S
IN

G
L

E
TR

C
E

D
AH

OON DR

RU
SH

LN

W NINE
MILE RD

E
IG

H
T

M
IL

E
C

R
E

E
K

R
D

JA
M

E
S

V
IL

L
E

R
D

LUPI N
E

LN

BOW
LI NGGREEN

W AY

TA
R

A
C

IR

JASON DR

K
L

O
N

D
IK

E
 R

D

INTERSTA
T

E

10

BEL LRIDGE TRL

CAMERO

LN

WILDE
LAKE BLVD

DEERFIELD
DR

MOBILE HWY

S

H IG HWAY 97

ILEX
LN

A
N

G
Y

L
A

W
A

Y

JA
D

E
A

C
R

E
S

 R
D

N
E

IG
H

T
M

IL
E

C
R

E
E

K
R

D

T 
JA

R
D

R

PA D DOC
K

W AY

JOSHUA DR

FOXTA
IL

L
O

O

P

VANDOR N LN

INTERSTATE10 RAMP

B OCAGE RD

JAMESVILLE
LN

A
L

T
A

V
IS

T
A

 D
R

HELMS RD

PE BB LECR EEK DR

M
A

RS
H

EL
DER

DR

S
U

N D
I A

L

C I R

DEE

R FIELD D R

B
E

U
L

A
H

S
C

H
O

O
L

 R
D

D
U

N
W

A
L

T
R

D

JU

NO

CI
R

SA
LT GRA S SDR W

P
IN

E
C

O
N

E
D

R

S

A
L

T

G R A S

S
D

R

S
A

N
DI

CREST

DR

HOLT

C
IR

S
T

A
G

E
C

O
A

C
H

 R
D

W
IL

S
H

IR
E

 R
D

SANDICREST DR

A

SHB U

R
Y

L
N

EIGHT MIL
E

CREEK
R

D

CRE E

K
W

O
O

D
D

R

DEVINE FARM RD

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 2,000 4,000 6,000

Ft

Z-2017-15
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



W NINE MILE RD
W NINE

MILE RD

LOBELIA LN

RU
SH

LN

SALT
GRASS DR

LUPIN
E

LN

S P OONFLOWER DR

INTERSTATE 10

MDR

Rec

HC/LI

LDR

HDMU

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 500 1,000 1,500

Ft

Z-2017-15
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



W NINE MILE RD

INTERSTATE 10

FOXTAIL

L OOP

LOBELIA LN

TARA
RD

D
E

E
R

F
IELD DR

SILV E R BELL
C T

RUSH
LN

LUP IN
E

LN

W NINE
MILE RD

TA
R

A
C

IR

INTERSTATE10 RAMP

PEBBLECREEK

D R
S P OONFLOWER D

R

MA R
S

H

EL D
E

R
D

R

SALT
GRASS DR

INTERSTATE 10

MU-S

MU-U

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 660 1,320 1,980

Ft

Z-2017-15
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



W NINE
MILE RD

W NINE MILE RD

FOXTA
IL

LO
O

P

LOBELIA LN

R
USH

LN

SALT
GRASS DR

LUPIN
E

LN

S P OONFLOWER DR
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 500 1,000 1,500

Ft

Z-2017-15
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer

TIMBER

FDOTNFCU

COMMERCIAL
OFFICE

VACANT COMMERCIAL

TIMBER

CONSERVATION

CONSERVATION

SFR

SFR

SFR
SFR SFR

VAC
RES

SFR

SFR

SFR
SFR
SFR

SFR

SFR
SFR

SFR

VAC
RES

SFR

SFR



W NINE MILE RD

LOBELIA LN

W NINEMILE RD

SPOO N F L
O

W
ER

D R
SALT

GRASS DR

RUSH
LN

LU PIN

E
LN

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 410 820 1,230

Ft

Z-2017-15
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



Public Hearing 
Sign



Looking East on Nine Mile Road



Looking North from the Parcel



Looking South onto Parcel



Looking West onto Nine Mile Road



Last Updated: 3/16/17 "pjTLl7 b706°-i3

Escambia County Planning and Zoning
Development Services Department

3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, FL 32505

Phone: (850) 595-3475 • Fax: (850) 595-3481

htfcp'•//myesreimbia.com/busmess/ds

Rezoning Application
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY -Case Number!"^--P>01>\^ Accepted b\i:A Ccu^, pq Meeting: '$111

1. Contact Information:

A. Property Owner/Applicant: The Dawson Company

Mailing Address: 191 Peachtree Tower NE Suite 805 Atlanta, GA 30303

Business Phone: 404-347-8030 Cell:

Email: bpope@thedawsoncompany.com

B. Authorized Agent (if applicable): Wiley C "Buddy" Page

Mailing Address: 5337 Hamilton Lane Pace, Florida 32571

Business Phone: 850-232-9853 Cell:

Email: budpage1@att.net

Note: Owner must complete the attached Agent Affidavit, if there is more than one owner, each owner must

complete an Agent Affidavit.Application will be voided if changes to this application are found.

2. Property Information:

A. Existing Street Address: 3811 West Nine Mile Road Pensacola, FL 32526

10-1S-31-2100-000-001Parcel ID (s):

B. Total acreage ofthe subjectjDrop^rly: 52+-

C. Existing Zoning: HD/MU-8efcB»

Proposed Zoning: Commercial

FLU Category: MU-U

D. Isthe subject property developed (ifyes, explain):

E. Sanitary Sewer: x Septic:

-2-

Vacant

























3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Division Manager 
   Development Services Department 
 
FROM: David Forte, Division Manager 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 
DATE: August 8, 2017 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – Z-2017-15 
 
TTO Staff has reviewed the Rezoning Case (Z)-2017-15, 3811Nine Mile Road, Agenda 
Item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled for September 5th, 2017. Please see 
the below comments. 
 

Currently, there are no Roadway Improvement Projects programmed in the 
County’s Capital Improvement Program; however there is the existing 4-laning 
construction project underway by the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) 
within the vicinity of the subject parcel. As of the August 2nd, 2017 Nine Mile Road 
Project Status Meeting for the segment of CR99 (Beulah Road) to SR297 (Pine Forest 
Road), FDOT is currently estimating a construction completion date of July 2019 
(barring weather, holiday and time extensions). 

Per the Florida-Alabama TPO’s Congestion Management Process Plan, Nine 
Mile Road is currently functioning within its allowable capacity for traffic volumes 
between the segment of Beulah Road to Pine Forest Road. The maximum level-of-
service (LOS) for the roadway segment is LOS D (17,700 trips/day), and currently the 
roadway segment is functioning at a LOS C (14,123 trips/day) and is expected to 
remain at a LOS C by Year 2024 (15,603 trips/day).  

Also, the segment of SR8 (I-10) from Beulah Road to Nine Mile Road has a 
maximum LOS C (61,500 trips/day), and the roadway segment is functioning at a LOS 
B (36,519 trips/day) and is expected to remain at a LOS B by Year 2024 (40,319 
trips/day). 

 
At this time, TTO has no immediate comments for the proposed rezoning 

request. 
 
Note: TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 
comments above hold no bearing on future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process.  



 
 
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Att1_Draft August 1, 2017 Planning Board Rezoning Meeting Minutes
	Z-2017-04
	Att1_Working Case File
	Z-2017-04
	Location/Wetlands Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	Proposed FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial Map
	Photos
	Application
	Letter of Request
	Warranty Deed
	Boundary Survey
	TTO Comments

	Z-2017-16
	Att1_Working Case File
	Z-2017-16
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial Map
	Photos
	Application
	Warranty Deed
	Boundary Survey
	TTO Comments

	Z-2017-14
	Att1_Working Case File
	Z-2017-14
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial Map
	Photos
	Letter of Request
	Application
	Criteria
	Proof of Ownership
	Boundary Surveys
	TTO Comments

	Z-2017-15
	Att1_Working Case File
	Z-2017-15
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial Map
	Photos
	Application
	Criteria
	Warranty Deed
	Boundary Survey
	TTO Comments


